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MEMO:

State Consumer Advocates

FROM:

PJM NGOs *
DATE:

July 12, 2011
RE: 

PJM Regional Planning Process Task Force (RPPTF) – Critical PIO Recommendations

Overview:  PJM’s RPPTF process could substantially improve system planning, reducing system costs while increasing reliability, but PJM’s initiative needs support from the public interest community.  State consumer advocates can play a critical role in making sure that planning reforms are effective.  This memo summarizes planning recommendations in a recent report by Synapse Energy Economics.
  At stake are reforms to PJM’s load forecasting and stress-testing abilities, its ability to handle the likely retirement of over 14,000 MW of aging coal power plants, and its processes for identifying reliability solutions.  
Improving Load Forecasting and Stress Testing:  Ever more efficient power use and the growing availability of demand-response products have changed the long-standing relationship between electricity demand and economic growth.   PJM’s taking these changes fully into account – e.g., by including 100% of state efficiency and demand-response mandates in its baseline load forecast – will lower its estimate of future demand.  Indeed, the implementation of state energy efficiency programs alone would reduce PJM’s peak load forecast by nearly 10,000 MW in 2025, thereby reducing the need to build transmission upgrades and making it easier to accommodate the retirement of inefficient and expensive generating units.

PJM planning also needs to effectively integrate states’ renewable portfolio standards and distributed generation resources into its load forecasting and stress testing.  By ensuring that the new renewable resources are modeled properly and that energy efficiency, demand response, and distributed generation resources are fully integrated into its load deliverability and generation deliverability tests, PJM will be better able to avoid unnecessary network upgrades and target needed grid improvements.
Effectively Managing Retirements:  PJM and outside analysts agree that 14,000-17,000 MW (or more) of aging coal generation is at risk to retire in the next decade, as owners opt to retire units rather than upgrade very old plants to comply with modern pollution safeguards.  The magnitude and diversity of potential retirements are unprecedented, and PJM’s existing process is not well designed to handle it, creating the potential for incurring hundreds of millions of dollars of unnecessary costs.

Specifically, PJM’s tariff requires generators to give only 90 days’ notice before they retire.  Although in practice generators give somewhat more notice, they are not required to do so, and the notice provision is not calibrated to give PJM time to ensure that needed reliability solutions are in place by retirement dates.  Nor is the planning process designed to enable PJM to act upon its own identification of at-risk plants.  Without reform, this system is primed to generate last-minute reliability projects and, worse, multiple uneconomic reliability must-run contracts (RMRs).
  Thus, PJM should extend its retirement notification period to three years, consistent with the time periods used in its interconnection queue and capacity market, to give itself time to plan for retirement sensibly.  It should also expand its ability to analyze and act upon data that indicates likely generator retirement, such as a resource’s failure to clear capacity market auctions, very low capacity factor, or very high heat rate.
Developing Least-Cost Reliability Solutions Transparently:  The public has a vital interest in the costs and impacts of PJM transmission decisions.  PJM should therefore investigate ways to invite citizens, as well as market participants, to propose reliability solutions once a problem has been identified (e.g., as the NY ISO has done).  Because the most cost effective options for resolving reliability problems may involve lowering demand, energy efficiency, demand-response, and distributed generation resources (or products) should be included in this solution identification process.

Finally, because expensive reliability upgrades should not be locked into regional plans if they become unnecessary, the “deadband” approach PJM has suggested needs to be thoughtfully limited.  Public interest organizations and consumer advocates need to ensure that a “deadband” proposal does not insulate costly projects from on-going scrutiny or impede potential market solutions. 
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� Synapse Energy Economics’ report PJM System Planning: Enhancements for the 21st Century, June 20, 2011, which the Sierra Club or other PJM NGOs can provide upon request.


� Although RMRs are often cost-based, the costs are significant:  RMR payments to two generators in Maryland will exceed $270 million from 2011 to 2014, and these costs are in addition to the costs of bringing a lasting reliability solution online.









